
           

SAPULPA PLANNING COMMISSION
CITY HALL - 425 EAST DEWEY AVENUE

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 2ND FLOOR
5:30 P.M., TUESDAY, AUGUST 27, 2019

Notice is hereby given that the Sapulpa Planning Commission of the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma,
will meet in regular session at 5:30 p.m. on the 27th day of August , 2019, in the Council
Chambers, Sapulpa City Hall, 425 E Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma, with the agenda for said
meeting as follows:
  
MEETING PROCEDURE:  If you wish to speak to the Commission on an item, please sign in at
the back of the room.  Comments concerning items scheduled on the Agenda will be heard
immediately following the presentation by staff or petitioner.  The Planning Commission will act
on the Agenda Item after all comments have been heard.  

Please wait until you are recognized by the Chairman and keep comments as brief as possible.

  
 - AGENDA -

           

1. CALL TO ORDER.   

 

2. INVOCATION.   

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.   

 

4. ROLL CALL.   

 

5. REPORTS:   

 

A. Chairman's Report:   

 

B. Work Session Report:   

 

C. Director's Report:   

 

6. MINUTES.   

 

A. Discussion and possible action to approve the minutes from the July 23, 2019 Sapulpa
Planning Commission meeting.

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA: All matters under “Consent” are considered by the City
Council to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. Any Board member may,
however, remove an item from consent by request.

  

 

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS.   

1 of 2 

  



8. PUBLIC HEARINGS.   

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding the application by Kalen Patel, R & D Grass
Corporation, for a Specific Use Permit, SUP-040, to allow a commercial marijuana
grow facility located at 5526 South 48th West Avenue, Tulsa.

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding the application by Michael McSweeney,
Strandedonearthllc, for a Specific Use Permit, SUP-043, to allow a medicinal marijuana
dispensary located at 6 West Teel Road.

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the Zoning ordinance
of the City of Sapulpa; Changing the Zone and District of Property located at 1107 East
McKinley Avenue, City of Sapulpa, Creek County, State of Oklahoma, from RS-3
(Residential Single Family) to CS (Commercial Shopping).

 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the Zoning Ordinance
of the City of Sapulpa, changing the Zone and District of property located at 10176
South 49th West Avenue, City of Sapulpa, State of Oklahoma, from RMH (Residential
Mobile Home Park District) to RE (Residential Estate), per SAZ-957.

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the Zoning Ordinance
of the City of Sapulpa; Changing the Zone and District of property located at 102
South Poplar Street, City of Sapulpa, State of Oklahoma, from OL (Office Low
Intensity) to RS-3 (Residential Single Family), per SAZ-959.

 

9. COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS.   

 

10. ADJOURNMENT.   

 

Posted this 20th day of August, 2019 at or before 5:30 o’clock p.m., at the  Sapulpa City Hall, 425
East Dewey, Sapulpa, Oklahoma.

Name: Brittany Billingsly

Title: Administrative Assistant

 

2 of 2 

  



 

   
    Consent Agenda    6.A.        

Sapulpa Planning Commission
Meeting Date: August 27, 2019  
Submitted By: Nikki Howard, Urban Development Director

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action to approve the minutes from the July 23, 2019 Sapulpa Planning
Commission meeting.

Attachments
minutes



 

Page 1 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 

__________________________ 
1. Call to order 

 
The meeting was CALLED TO ORDER by acting SPC Chairman Andrew Probst at 

5:30 PM. 

 
2. Election of Officers 

 
Motion to NOMINATE Andrew Probst as SPC Chairman made by Kayla Parnell 

and seconded by Lou Martin.  

 

Due to NO further nominations made by the Planning Commission for SPC 

Chairman a motion to CEASE the nomination made by Lou Martin and seconded 

by Hunter Edwards.  

 

All Planning Commissioners present stated AYE to confirm the nomination of 

Andrew Probst as SPC Chairman. 

 

Motion to NOMINATE Lou Martin as SPC Vice-Chairman made by Kayla Parnell 

and seconded by Hunter Edwards.  

 

Due to NO further nominations made by the Planning Commission for SPC Vice-

Chairman a motion to CEASE the nominations made by Hunter Edwards and 

seconded by Jasson Brook. 

 

All Planning Commissioners present stated AYE to confirm the nomination of Lou 

Martin as SPC Vice-Chairman. 

 

3. Invocation 

 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

5. Roll Call 
 

Commissioners PRESENT: Jasson Brook, Hunter Edwards, Lou Martin, Kayla 

Parnell, Andrew Probst 

Commissioners ABSENT: Julia Longoria, Carla Stinnett 

 
6. Directors Report 



 

Page 2 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
 
Directors Report was presented to the Planning Commission by Urban Development 

Director Nikki Howard.  

 

There was NO DISCUSSION or PUBLIC COMMENTS for this item. 

 
7. Consent Items (Lot-Splits): None 

 
8. Public Hearing: 

 
 

A. SAZ-954 – Hersh Properties, LLC – Rezoning from RS-3 (Residential Single-
Family High Density) to RD (Residential Duplex). Location: 517 North 3rd Street. 
 

The Staff Report was presented the Planning Commission by Director 

Howard. In the Staff Report Director Howard stated that staff was 

recommending APPROVAL of the requested rezoning. 

 

The applicant Justin Hershberger was presented to address the Planning 

Commission. There was a brief discussion about the proposed use of the 

property. It was determined by the applicant that he owns the 4-plex and the 

two duplexes on the property to the North and plans to construct 2 new 

duplexes on the subject property very similar to the existing structures to the 

North. 

 

There were NO PUBLIC COMMENTS for this item. 

 

Motion to APPROVE made by Edwards and seconded by Martin. 

AYE – Brook, Edwards, Martin, Parnell, Probst 

NAY – None 

 

Motion PASSED (5-0) 

 
B. SAZ-955 – Michael Balch, Jr. – Rezoning from CG (Commercial General) to 

RS-3 (Residential Single-Family High Density). Location: Northeast corner of 
North Polar Street and West Hobson Avenue. 

 
Staff Report was presented to the Planning Commission by Director Howard 

in the Staff Report Director Howard stated that staff was recommending 

DENIAL of the application for the rezoning because this was considered spot 

zoning and the application is not in compliance with the comprehensive plan. 



 

Page 3 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
An email was then presented to the Planning Commission from absent 

Commissioner Longoria. Commissioner Longoria asked for the Planning 

Commission to consider continuing this item to the August 27, 2019 meeting 

date until more information about the zoning of the surrounding properties 

is provided. 

 

The applicant Michael Balch, Jr. was presented to address the Planning 

Commission. The applicant stated that reason they are request to have a 

commercially zoned property be rezoned to residential is due to the 

unusually small lot size (50’ by 160’), the applicant also stated that the lot 

could not be utilized for anything other than residential because of its size. 

 

Chairman Probst then OPENED this item to PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

 

Interested Parties:  Ray Freeman (1111 N. Poplar St. Sapulpa) - opposed 

    Concerns: 

1. Would need to have the whole area rezoned and not just 

a small piece of property. 

2. Unsure is the applicant could meet the required 

building setbacks for residential. 

3. If an older house is moved in it will not have a 

foundation. 

4. Is opposed to bringing in an old house, would not do 

any good for the neighborhood. 

 

The applicant then stated that the house that would be brought in was 

currently located on Bryan next to the Daylight Donuts and this house would 

need to be removed in order for the owner of the Daylight Donuts to build a 

new building for his business. The applicant also stated that he thought this 

house was worth saving and also said that it would be completely restored 

and look like a new home.  

Director Howard stated that this application would require a Comp Plan 

Amendment, she also stated that she would also recommend denial of the 

Comp Plan Amendment. 

 

The applicant then requested that this item be CONTINUED until the 

August 27, 2019 meeting because he has not purchased the property yet and 

was under the impression that is was already zoned as residential. The 

applicant also stated that if he chose to not purchase the property he would 

then withdraw his application. 

 



 

Page 4 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
Motion to CONTINUE to the August 27, 2019 made by Edwards and 

seconded by Brook. 

 

AYE – Brook, Edwards, Martin, Parnell, Probst 

NAY – None 

 

Motion PASSED (5-0) 

 
C. SUP-040 – Kelan Patel – Specific Use Permit to allow Marijuana- Commercial 

Growth Facility use in a CG (Commercial General) zoning district. Location: 
5526 South 48th West Avenue. (Applicant requests a continuance to the August 
27, 2019 meeting.) 

 
Motion to CONTINUE this item until the August 27, 2019 meeting made by 

Edwards and seconded by Book. 

 

AYE – Brook, Edwards, Martin, Parnell, Probst 

NAY – None 

 

Motion PASSED (5-0) 

 
D. SUP-041 – Releaf Ranch, LLC – Specific Use Permit to allow Marijuana – 

Retail dispensary/Establishment use in a CG (Commercial General) zoning 
district. Location: 9697 State Highway 66. 

 
The Staff Report was presented to the Planning Commission by Director 

Howard. In the Staff Report Director Howard stated that staff was 

recommending APPROVAL of the application with the following conditions: 

a. Each Commercial Medical Marijuana Facility shall be operated from the 

permitted premises on the permitted property. No Commercial Medical 

Marijuana Facility shall be permitted to operate from a moveable, mobile 

or transitory location, except for a permitted and licensed secure 

transporter when engaged in the lawful transport of Marijuana. 

b. Commercial operators will need to submit their security plan and shall 

include the following: see attached security plan 

c. Operating hours shall be between 8:00 am and 8:00 pm. 

d. Signs: No pictures, photographs, drawings or other depictions of 

marijuana or marijuana paraphernalia shall appear on the outside of any 

permitted premises nor be visible outside of the permitted premises on 

the permitted property. The words “marijuana”, “cannabis” and any 

other words used or intended to convey the presence or availability of 



 

Page 5 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
marijuana shall not appear on the outside of the permitted premises nor 

be visible outside of the permitted premises on the permitted property. 

e. All activities of Commercial Medical Marijuana facilities, including 

without limitation, distribution, growth, cultivation, or the sale of 

marijuana, and all other related activity under the permit holder’s license 

or permit must occur indoors. The facility’s operation and design shall 

minimize any impact to adjacent uses, including the control of any odor 

by maintaining and operating an air filtration system so that no odor is 

detectable outside of the permitted premises.  

f. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits and 

inspections must be obtained for any part of the permitted premises.  

g. The permit holder, owner and operator of the facility shall use lawful 

methods in controlling waste or by-products from any activities allowed 

under the license or permit. 

 

The applicant Releaf Ranch was present to address the Planning 

Commission. The applicant stated that her plan was to be open seven days a 

week from 10 AM to 8 PM but could change depending on how much 

business they would have coming in. The applicant also stated that she had 

plans to open the 1st of September and would have five to ten employees for 

the business. 

 

There was a discuss between the Planning Commission and the applicant 

about if there was a separation between her parking lot and the adjacent 

parking lot owned by the Skating Rink. The applicant stated that the parking 

lots do meet but are not shared. The applicant also stated that she had tried 

to meet with the owners of the skating rink of two separate occasions but was 

unable to get a meeting scheduled. 

 

The applicant also stated that screening requirement would be unnecessary 

because of the metal building behind her property was much taller than a 

six-foot privacy fence and felt that would be adequate for her screening 

requirements. It was determined by Director Howard that the applicant 

would need to file for a Variance and receive the Sapulpa Board of 

Adjustment approval for no screening of the property. 

 

Chairman Probst then OPENED this item to PUBLIC COMMENTS. 

 

Interested Parties: Doug Redding (9755 State Highway 66) 

    Concerns: 



 

Page 6 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
1. State law requires Medical Marijuana businesses to be 

located 1000 ft. from a public school and this business is 

next door to a skating rink that has a lot of kids. 

2. The Planning Commission needs to come up with fair 

regulations to protect kids. 

 

      Chairman Probst then CLOSED PUBLIC COMMENTS for this item. 

 

The applicant again addressed the Planning Commission, stating that she is a 

mother of two girls that are grown now but was always considered over 

protective. The applicant also stated that any type of business that she chose 

to operate would abide by the laws. She also stated that all customers must 

be 18 years or older and have their Medical Marijuana Card to be allowed 

into the facility. The applicant also stated to Planning Commission that there 

are five register sex offenders that live on the other side of the skating rink 

and believes that is much more concerning to the wellbeing of children than 

her business. 

 

Commission Edwards asked the applicant about what type of signage she 

planned to have installed for the business. The applicant stated that her plans 

were to have the green cross and the business name “Releaf Ranch” on her 

business sign. 

Commissioner Martin stated that his concern is that the parking lots are shared 

and the skating rink is a kid oriented business.  

 

There was a brief discussion among the Planning Commission about separating 

the parking lots by either a vehicle barrier or to extend the required screening 

fence to the south side of the property and to install security cameras for the 

parking lot area. 

 

Motion to DENY the application made by Martin and NO second for the motion. 

Motion FAILED due to a lack of a motion. 

 

Director Howard stated to the Planning Commission that the two businesses 

would only have one hour of overlapping on their operating hours. 

 

 

Motion to APPROVE with staff recommendations and to extend the required 

screening fence to the south side of the property and to install security cameras 

for the parking lot area made by Edwards and seconded by Brook. 

 



 

Page 7 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
AYE – Brook, Edwards, Parnell 

NAY – Martin, Probst 

 

Motion PASSED (3-2) 

 
E. SUP-042 – Green Country Research, INC – Specific Use Permit to allow 

Marijuana – Commercial Growth Facility use in an IL (Industrial Light) zoning 

district. Location: 4550 West 57th Street. 
 

The Staff Report was presented to the Planning Commission by Director 

Howard. In the Staff Report Director Howard stated that staff was 

recommending APPROVAL of the application for requested Specific Use 

Permit with the following conditions: 

a. Each Commercial Medical Marijuana Facility shall be operated from 

the permitted premises on the permitted property. No Commercial 

Medical Marijuana Facility shall be permitted to operate from a 

moveable, mobile or transitory location, except for a permitted and 

licensed secure transporter when engaged in the lawful transport of 

Marijuana. 

b. Commercial operators will need to submit their security plan and shall 

include the following: 

c. Security surveillance cameras installed to monitor all entrances, along 

with the interior and exterior of the permitted premises; 

d. Alarm systems which are professionally monitored and operated 24 

hours a day, seven days a week; 

e. A locking safe permanently affixed to the permitted premises that shall 

store all marijuana and cash remaining in the facility overnight; 

f. All marijuana in whatever form stored at the permitted premises shall 

be kept in a secure manner and shall not be visible from outside the 

permitted premises, nor shall it be grown, processed, exchanged, 

displayed or dispensed outside of the permitted premises;  

g. All security recordings shall be preserved for at least seven (7) days by 

the permit holder and made available to any law enforcement officer 

upon request for inspection 

h. Signs: No pictures, photographs, drawings or other depictions of 

marijuana or marijuana paraphernalia shall appear on the outside of 

any permitted premises nor be visible outside of the permitted premises 

on the permitted property. The words “marijuana”, “cannabis” and 

any other words used or  



 

Page 8 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
intended to convey the presence or availability of marijuana shall not 

appear on the outside of the permitted premises nor be visible outside  

of the permitted premises on the permitted property. 

i. All activities of Commercial Medical Marijuana facilities, including 

without limitation, distribution, growth, cultivation, or the sale of 

marijuana, and all other related activity under the permit holder’s  

license or permit must occur indoors. The facility’s operation and 

design shall minimize any impact to adjacent uses, including the control 

of any odor by maintaining and operating an air filtration system so 

that no odor is detectable outside of the permitted premises.  

j. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits  

and inspections must be obtained for any part of the permitted 

premises.  

k. The permit holder, owner and operator of the facility shall use lawful 

methods in controlling waste or by-products from any activities 

allowed under the license or permit. 

 

The applicant Green Country Research was presented to address the 

Planning Commission. There was a brief discussion among the Planning 

Commission and the applicant about the tracking of the inventory. It was 

determined by the applicant that they must follow the “seed to sell” 

procedure to track all of their product. The applicant also stated that the 

seed is recorded and then tracked by being weighed at different stages during 

the growth period of the plant until it is sold. The applicant also stated that 

they have taken extra security measures to ensure that no product leaves the 

facility without their knowledge. 

It was also determined by the applicant that the facility would employee up 

to eight part-time employees. 

 

Commission Brook then asked the applicant what type of background checks 

if any would be performed on potential employees. It was determined by the 

applicant that they would be running background checks on employees and 

they are looking for applicants that have a horticulture background. 

 

There were NO PUBLIC COMMENTS for this item. 

 

Motion to APPROVE with staff recommendations made by Brook and 

seconded by Parnell. 

 

AYE – Brook, Edwards, Martin, Parnell, Probst 

NAY – None 



 

Page 9 of 9 
 

M I N U T E S 

Sapulpa Planning Commission 
Tuesday – July 23, 2019 – 5:30 PM – Special Meeting 

City Hall – City Council Chambers – 2nd Floor 

425 East Dewey Avenue Sapulpa, Oklahoma 74066 
 

Motion PASSED (5-0)  

 

 

F. Discussion and possible action to adopt “Planning Commission Policies and 
Procedures”. 

 

There was NO DICUSSION or PUBLIC COMMENTS for this item. 

 

Motion to APPROVE made by Martin and seconded by Parnell. 

 

AYE – Brook, Edwards, Martin, Parnell, Probst 

NAY – None 

 

Motion PASSED (5-0) 

 
 

9. Adjournment:  
 

Motion to ADJOURN made by Edwards and seconded by Brook. 

 

AYE – Brook, Edwards, Martin, Parnell, Probst 

NAY – None 

Motion PASSED (5-0) 

 

The meeting was ADJOURNED at 7:04 PM. 

                                                                           

 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SPC Chairman         Date 

 



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Public Hearings    8.A.        

Sapulpa Planning Commission
Meeting Date: August 27, 2019  
Submitted By: Nikki Howard, Urban Development Director
Department: Planning & Development
Presented By: Nikki Howard

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding the application by Kalen Patel, R & D Grass
Corporation, for a Specific Use Permit, SUP-040, to allow a commercial marijuana grow facility
located at 5526 South 48th West Avenue, Tulsa.

BACKGROUND:
The proposed commercial marijuana grow facility in located North and East of the "Town West"
shopping center. The general area is primarily a mix of heavy commercial, industrial, and motel
uses. The building located directly to the North is located on the same parcel is an industrial
supply company.
The applicants have been approved through OMMA (Oklahoma Medicinal Marijuana Authority"
for the proposed location.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the SUP-040 with the conditions listed on the case report.

Attachments
Staff report
Findings of Fact & Conclusion of Law
Maps and submittals
site photo



SUP-040 Patel   August 27, 2019 Page 1 of 3 

    
    
 

 

SAPULPA PLANNING COMMISSION  
August 27, 2019 
STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE: SUP-040 | Specific Use Permit 
 
APPLICANT:   Kelan Patel 
 
ADDRESS:  5526 South 48th West Avenue, Tulsa 
 
PARCEL:  30750-92-33-08190 
 
STR:   Section 33, Township 19 North, Range 12 East 
 
LEGAL:  Lots One (1), Two (2), Three (3), Four (4), and Five (5), Block Twelve 

(12), Opportunity Heights, an addition to the City of Sapulpa, Tulsa 
County, State of Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat thereof  

 
LOT SIZE: 1.36 acres more or less 
  
ZONING:   CG Commercial General 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant building 
 
OWNER:   1803, LLC 
 
CC WARD:  Ward #5 Mr. Bruce Bledsoe and Mr. Hugo Naifeh 
 
PREPARED BY:       Nikki Howard – Urban Development Director  
 
  
 
REQUEST: 
 
The applicant requests a Specific Use Permit to allow a Commercial Marijuana Growth Facility  
in a CG (Commercial General). 
 
 

 

  

 

  



SUP-040 Patel   August 27, 2019 Page 2 of 3 

APPLICABLE STATE AND MUNICIPLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 
As provided in O.S. § 11-43-113, the utilization of the SUP process is designed to address uses 
which are specialized in nature. The Specific Use list are so clarified because of the size of the 
land they require or the specialized nature of the use, or they may more intensely  dominate 
the area in which they are located, or their effects on the general public are broader in scope 
than other types of uses permitted in the district. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The proposed Commercial Marijuana Growth Facility is located North and East of the “Town 
West” shopping center. The general area is primarily a mix of Heavy Commercial, Industrial, 
and motel uses. They have approval from the OMMA for the proposed location. 
Fastenal is located on the same parcel as the proposed grow facility. They are  an Industrial 
supply company.   
 
 
SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING:  
 
 

North: CG Fastenal 
 
East: CG Vacant lot  
 
South: CG Interstate Inn 
 
West: CG Interstate Inn 
  

 
 
Comprehensive Plan: The subject property is designated 

Commercial/Industrial on the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM).   

    
Flood Zone:   The subject property is not within a flood zone.  
   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: As of writing this report, staff has not received any public comment.   
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
       Recommended motion for SPC: 
 

Staff is recommending APPROVAL of the application with the following conditions: 
a. Each Commercial Medical Marijuana Facility shall be operated from the permitted 

premises on the permitted property. No Commercial medical Marijuana Facility 



SUP-040 Patel   August 27, 2019 Page 3 of 3 

shall be permitted to operate from a moveable, mobile or transitory location, except 
for a permitted and licensed secure transporter when engaged in the lawful 
transport of Marijuana. 

b. Commercial operators will need  to submit their security plan and shall include the 
following: 

• Security surveillance cameras installed to monitor all entrances, along with 
the interior and exterior of the permitted premises; 

• Alarm systems which are professionally monitored and operated 24 hours a 
day, seven days a week; 

• A locking safe permanently affixed to the permitted premises that shall store 
all marijuana and cash remaining in the facility overnight; 

• All marijuana in whatever form stored at the permitted premises shall be 
kept in a secure manner and shall not be visible from outside the permitted 
premises, nor shall it be grown, processed, exchanged, displayed or 
dispensed outside of the permitted premises;  

• All security recordings shall be preserved  for at least seven (7) days by the 
permit holder and made available to any law enforcement officer upon 
request for inspection 

c. Signs: No pictures, photographs, drawings or other depictions of marijuana or 
marijuana paraphernalia shall appear on the outside of any permitted premises nor 
be visible outside of the permitted premises on the permitted property. The words 
“marijuana”, “cannabis” and any other words used or intended to convey the 
presence or availability of marijuana shall not appear on the outside of the 
permitted premises nor be visible outside of the permitted premises on the 
permitted property. 

d. All activities of Commercial Medical Marijuana facilities, including without 
limitation, distribution, growth, cultivation, or the sale of marijuana, and all other 
related activity under the permit holder’s license or permit must occur indoors. The 
facility’s operation and design shall minimize any impact to adjacent uses, including 
the control of any odor by maintaining and operating an air filtration system so that 
no odor is detectable outside of the permitted premises.  

e. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits and 
inspections must be obtained for any part of the permitted premises.  

f. The permit holder, owner and operator of the facility shall use lawful methods in 
controlling waste or by-products from any activities allowed under the license or 
permit. 
 

 
 

 



FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 

NOW on this ___ day of _______________, the City of Sapulpa Planning Commission, having 

considered the above Specific Use Permit request, finds and concludes as follows: 

 

1. PROBABLE EFFECT OF THE PROJECT ON THE ADJACENT PROPERTY:  The 

Planning Commission finds that the proposed use will have (minimal/substantial) effect on the 

adjacent property. 

 

2.  COMMUNITY WELFARE AS AFFECTED BY THE PROJECT:   

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed use (will/will not) adversely affect the 

community welfare. 

 

3.  IMPACT OF THE DEVELOPMENT ON PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT 

NOT LIMITED TO PARKS, ROADS, AND UTILITIES:   

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed use (will/will not) have an adverse effect on 

public facilities. 

 

4.  SAFEGUARDS TO DIMINISH THE EFFECT ON THE ADJACENT PROPERTY, 

COMMUNITY WELFARE, OR PUBLIC FACILITIES/SERVICES: 

The Planning Commission finds that the following safeguards (if any) are needed, to diminish 

the effect of the proposed use: 

 

(a) _____________________________ 

(b) _____________________________ 

(c) _____________________________ 

 

5. All procedural requirements of 11 O.S. 43-113 have been met and SUP-_____ is hereby 

approved/denied for the reasons set forth above, and these findings and conclusions have been 

approved in open meeting this ___ day of ___________, 20___. 

 





























AGENDA ITEM

   
    Public Hearings    8.B.        

Sapulpa Planning Commission
Meeting Date: August 27, 2019  
Submitted By: Nikki Howard, Urban Development Director
Department: Planning & Development
Presented By: Nikki Howard

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding the application by Michael McSweeney,
Strandedonearthllc, for a Specific Use Permit, SUP-043, to allow a medicinal marijuana
dispensary located at 6 West Teel Road.

BACKGROUND:
The subject property is located at the southwest corner of West Teel Road and South Main Street.
The proposed dispensary is a small (494 square feet) tenant space between a convenience store
and a laundromat. Lazy H is located directly south, multifamily use to the east, north is a non
conforming single family residential structure, and a mini storage facility to the west.
The proposed dispensary is located approximately 1200 feet from Central Technology Center
main campus.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of SUP-043 with conditions listed in the case report.

Attachments
Staff report
Findings of Fact & Conclusion of Law
maps and submittals
site photo



SUP-043 McSweeney   August 27, 2019 Page 1 of 3 

    
    
 

 

SAPULPA PLANNING COMMISSION  
August 27, 2019 
STAFF REPORT 

 

FILE: SUP-043 | Specific Use Permit 
 
APPLICANT:   Michael McSweeney 
 
ADDRESS:  6 West Teel Road 
 
PARCEL:  1999-11-017-011-0-020-00 
 
STR:   Section 11, Township 17 North, Range 11 East 
 
LEGAL:  A tract of land in the NW/4 of Section 11, Township 17 North, Range 11 

East of the Indian Base and Meridian, Creek County, State of Oklahoma, 
being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the NE 
corner of the NW/4 of Section 11; Thence West along the North line of 
said Section a distance of 832.69 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 
due South a distance of 215 feet to the North line of Lazy H Addition to 
the City of Sapulpa; Thence due West along the North line of said 
Addition a distance of 120.00 feet; Thence due North a distance of 215 
feet to the North line of said Section; Thence East along the North line of 
said Section a distance of 120.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

LOT SIZE: 23,980 square feet more or less 
  
ZONING:   CS – Commercial Shopping Center 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant tenant space  
 
OWNER:   Robert and Hatsumi Robertson 
 
CC WARD:  Ward #3 Vice Mayor Lou Martin and Mr. Marty Cummins 
 
PREPARED BY:       Nikki Howard – Urban Development Director  
 
  
 

 

  

 

  



SUP-043 McSweeney   August 27, 2019 Page 2 of 3 

REQUEST: 
 
The applicant requests a Specific Use Permit to allow a Retail Medicinal Marijuana Dispensary 
in the CS (Commercial Shopping Center). 
 
 
 
APPLICABLE STATE AND MUNICIPLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 
As provided in O.S. § 11-43-113, the utilization of the SUP process is designed to address uses 
which are specialized in nature. The Specific Use list are so clarified because of the size of the 
land they require or the specialized nature of the use, or they may more intensely  dominate 
the area in which they are located, or their effects on the general public are broader in scope 
than other types of uses permitted in the district. 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  
A medical marijuana dispensary license allows a business to legally sell medical marijuana 
and medical marijuana products. Licensed dispensaries can only sell to patient license 
holders, caregiver license holders, research license holders, and the parent o r legal guardian 
named on a minor patient’s license. Dispensaries engaging in unlawful sales may be fined, or 
their licenses may be revoked. Licensed dispensaries must comply with Title 63 O.S. § 420A et 
seq. and the Oklahoma Administrative Code (OAC) 310:681. 
 
The subject property is located at the southwest corner of West Teel Road and South Main 
Street. The proposed dispensary is a small tenant space between a convenience store and 
laundromat.   
 
SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING:  
 
 

North: CG Non-conforming residential use 
 
East: CG Vacant lot  
 
South: RS-3 Lazy H Addition 
 
West: CS Mini Storage 
  

                           
 
Comprehensive Plan: The subject property is designated 

Office/Commercial on the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM).   

    
Flood Zone:   The subject property is not within a flood zone.  
   



SUP-043 McSweeney   August 27, 2019 Page 3 of 3 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: As of writing this report, staff has not received any public comment.   
 

 
 

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
       Recommended motion for SMAPC: 
 

Staff is recommending APPROVAL of the application with the following conditions: 
 

a. Each Commercial Medical Marijuana Facility shall be operated from the permitted 
premises on the permitted property. No Commercial medical Marijuana Facility 
shall be permitted to operate from a moveable, mobile or transitory location, except 
for a permitted and licensed secure transporter when engaged in the lawful 
transport of Marijuana. 

b. Commercial operators will need  to submit their security plan and shall include the 
following: see attached security plan 

c. Operating hours shall be between 8:00 am and 8:00 pm. 
d. Signs: No pictures, photographs, drawings or other depictions of marijuana or 

marijuana paraphernalia shall appear on the outside of any permitted premises nor 
be visible outside of the permitted premises on the permitted property. The words 
“marijuana”, “cannabis” and any other words used or intended to convey the 
presence or availability of marijuana shall not appear on the outside of the 
permitted premises nor be visible outside of the permitted premises on the 
permitted property. 

e. All activities of Commercial Medical Marijuana facilities, including without 
limitation, distribution, growth, cultivation, or the sale of marijuana, and all other 
related activity under the permit holder’s license or permit must occur indoors. The 
facility’s operation and design shall minimize any impact to adjacent uses, including 
the control of any odor by maintaining and operating an air filtration system so that 
no odor is detectable outside of the permitted premises.  

f. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits and 
inspections must be obtained for any part of the permitted premises.  

g. The permit holder, owner and operator of the facility shall use lawful methods in 
controlling waste or by-products from any activities allowed under the license or 
permit. 
 

 



FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 

NOW on this ___ day of _______________, the City of Sapulpa Planning Commission, having 

considered the above Specific Use Permit request, finds and concludes as follows: 

 

1. PROBABLE EFFECT OF THE PROJECT ON THE ADJACENT PROPERTY:  The 

Planning Commission finds that the proposed use will have (minimal/substantial) effect on the 

adjacent property. 

 

2.  COMMUNITY WELFARE AS AFFECTED BY THE PROJECT:   

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed use (will/will not) adversely affect the 

community welfare. 

 

3.  IMPACT OF THE DEVELOPMENT ON PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT 

NOT LIMITED TO PARKS, ROADS, AND UTILITIES:   

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed use (will/will not) have an adverse effect on 

public facilities. 

 

4.  SAFEGUARDS TO DIMINISH THE EFFECT ON THE ADJACENT PROPERTY, 

COMMUNITY WELFARE, OR PUBLIC FACILITIES/SERVICES: 

The Planning Commission finds that the following safeguards (if any) are needed, to diminish 

the effect of the proposed use: 

 

(a) _____________________________ 

(b) _____________________________ 

(c) _____________________________ 

 

5. All procedural requirements of 11 O.S. 43-113 have been met and SUP-_____ is hereby 

approved/denied for the reasons set forth above, and these findings and conclusions have been 

approved in open meeting this ___ day of ___________, 20___. 

 





















AGENDA ITEM

   
    Public Hearings    8.C.        

Sapulpa Planning Commission
Meeting Date: August 27, 2019  
Submitted By: Nikki Howard, Urban Development Director
Department: Planning & Development
Presented By: Nikki Howard

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the Zoning ordinance of the
City of Sapulpa; Changing the Zone and District of Property located at 1107 East McKinley
Avenue, City of Sapulpa, Creek County, State of Oklahoma, from RS-3 (Residential Single
Family) to CS (Commercial Shopping).

BACKGROUND:
The subject property is located east of the Northeast corner of East McKinley Avenue and South
Main Street. The rezoning is to bring the existing business into compliance. The lot is used as
office space and detailing of cars for "Down the Road Motors" formerly "Henshaw's Used Cars".
The West lot was rezoned to Commercial in 1976 when it was owned by the City of Sapulpa with
used car sales being the proposed use.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff is recommends approval of the request to rezone the property from Residential SIngle
Family to COmmercial Shopping.

Attachments
staff report
case maps
site photo



SAZ-956 | Mortazavi       August 27, 2019 Page 1 of 2 

    
    
 

 

SAPULPA PLANNING COMMISSION (SPC) 
August 27, 2019 

 

FILE: SAZ-956 | Rezoning 
 
OWNERS:   Davood and Jalil Mortazavi 
 
ADDRESS: 1107 East McKinley Avenue 
PARCEL:  1630-00-013-000-0-130-00 
    
STR:   Section 36, Township 18 North, Range 11 East 
 
LEGAL:  Lot Fourteen (14), Block Thirteen (13), Woodlawn Addition to the City of 

Sapulpa, Creek County, State of Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat 
thereof. 

 
LOT SIZE: 8250 square feet more or less 
  
ZONING:   RS-3 
 
EXISTING USE:  Commercial Car Lot 
 
APPLICANT:   Jerry Mortazavi 
 
CC WARD:  Ward #1 Mr. Wes Galloway and Mr. John Suggs 
 
PREPARED BY:       Nikki Howard – Urban Development Director  
 
  
 
REQUEST: 
 
The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from RS-3 (Residential Single Family) 
to CS (Commercial Shopping). 
 
 
APPLICABLE STATE AND MUNICIPLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 

 

  

 
  



SAZ-956 | Mortazavi       August 27, 2019 Page 2 of 2 

City of Sapulpa Zoning Code, Chapter 6, Commercial 
 
 
BACKGROUND: The subject property is located east of the Northeast corner of East McKinley 
Avenue and South Mission Street. The rezoning is to bring the property is compliance. It is 
used as office space/car detailing of the adjoining car lot (previously Henshaw’s Used  Cars).  
The lot to the West was owned by the City of Sapulpa and rezoned to commercial in 1976 for a 
proposed used car lot.  
 
SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING:  
 
 

North: CS Donut Shop 
 
East: RS-3 Residential Single Family  

  
South: CS Office 

 
West: CS Car lot 
 

 
Comprehensive Plan: The subject property is designated 

Office/Commercial on the Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM).  

 
Flood Zone:   The subject property is not located within a flood 

zone.  
   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Staff has not received any inquires regarding the application.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:       Recommended motion for SPC: 
 

Staff is recommending APPROVAL of the application. 
 

  
 











AGENDA ITEM

   
    Public Hearings    8.D.        

Sapulpa Planning Commission
Meeting Date: August 27, 2019  
Submitted By: Nikki Howard, Urban Development Director
Department: Planning & Development
Presented By: Nikki Howard

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the Zoning Ordinance of the
City of Sapulpa, changing the Zone and District of property located at 10176 South 49th West
Avenue, City of Sapulpa, State of Oklahoma, from RMH (Residential Mobile Home Park District)
to RE (Residential Estate), per SAZ-957.

BACKGROUND:
The subject property is west of 49th West Avenue, south of Hilton Road. The four parcels were
created via Lot-Split 1094 in September of 2018. Since the approval of the lot-split, one single
family residential structure is complete and occupied. The far west tract is currently under
construction. The owner would like to ensure that there are no mobile homes placed on the four
lots, thus the reasoning for the request.
The two easternmost tracts have a significant amount of grass, weeds, and tree debris. Those lots
will need to be cleaned prior to the issuance of a building permit.
Per CCZ-578 (1982) the original 40 acre tract was rezoned to RMH for a 190 unit mobile home
park.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the request to rezone the property from Residential Mobile Home
Park to Residential Real Estate.

Attachments
case report
Maps & survey
site photo east lots
site photo west lots



SAZ-957 | Lafevers       August 27, 2019 Page 1 of 3 

    
    
 

 

SAPULPA PLANNING COMMISSION (SPC) 
August 27, 2019 

 

FILE: SAZ-957 | Rezoning 
 
OWNERS:   Chad Lafevers 
 
ADDRESS: 10716,10720,10724,10728 South 49th West Avenue 
PARCEL:  1999-29-018-012-0-790-00 
   1999-29-018-012-0-950-00 
 
STR:   Section 29, Township 18 North, Range 12 East 
 
LEGAL:  A tract of land located in the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 

(NE/4 SE/4) of Section 29, Township 18 North, Range 12 East of the 
Indian Base and Meridian, Creek County, State of Oklahoma, according to 
the U.S. Government Survey thereof, being more particularly described 
as follows, to-wit: Beginning at a point 339.25 feet South and 623 feet 
East of the Northwest corner of the said NE/4 SE/4; thence East 191,32 
feet; thence South 227.65 feet; thence West 191.32 feet; thence North 
227.65 feet to the Point of Beginning. Subject to a 25 foot road easement 
on the South boundary. AND a tract of land located in the Northeast 
Quarter of the Southeast Quarter (NE/4 SE/4) of Section 29, Township 
18 North, Range 12 East of the Indian Base and Meridian, Creek County, 
State of Oklahoma, according to the U.S. Government Survey thereof, 
described as: Beginning at a point 566.8 feet South and 248.07 feet West 
of the Northeast corner of said NE/4 SE/4; thence West 262.63 feet; 
thence North 227.65 feet; thence S84°07’E 178 34 feet; thence East 83.2 
feet; thence South 208.7 feet to the Point of Beginning. Subject to a 25 
foot  

 
LOT SIZE: 2.29 acres  
  
ZONING:   RMH 
 
EXISTING USE:  Residential 
 
APPLICANT:   Chad Lafevers 

 

  

 
  



SAZ-957 | Lafevers       August 27, 2019 Page 2 of 3 

 
CC WARD:  Ward #5 Mr. Bruce Bledsoe and Mr. Hugo Naifeh 
 
PREPARED BY:       Nikki Howard – Urban Development Director  
 
  
 
REQUEST: 
 
The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from RMH (Residential Mobile Home 
Park) to RE (Residential Estate). 
 
 
APPLICABLE STATE AND MUNICIPLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 
City of Sapulpa Zoning Code, Chapter 4, Residential  
 
 
BACKGROUND: The subject property is west of 49th West Avenue South of Hilton Road. The 
four parcels were created via Lot-Split 1094 in September of 2018. Since the approval of a lot-
split, one single family residential structure is complete and occupied. The far west tract is 
currently under construction. The owner would like to ensure that there are no mobile homes 
placed on the four lots, thus the reasoning for the rezoning request. 
The two easternmost tracts have a significant amount of grass, weeds, and tree debris. Those 
lots will need to be cleaned prior to the issuance of a building permit.  
Per CCZ-578 (1982) the original 40 acre tract was rezoned to RMH for a 190 unit mobile home 
park. 
 
SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING:  
 
 

North: RMH Single Family Dwelling 
 
East: RMH Single Family Dwelling  

  
South: RMH Single Family Dwelling 

 
West: RMH non-conforming storage of a mobile home 
 

 
Comprehensive Plan: The subject property is designated REsidential on 

the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).  
 
Flood Zone:   The subject property is not located within a flood 

zone.  
   
 



SAZ-957 | Lafevers       August 27, 2019 Page 3 of 3 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Staff has not received any inquires regarding the application.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:       Recommended motion for SPC: 
 

Staff is recommending APPROVAL of the application. 
 

  













AGENDA ITEM

   
    Public Hearings    8.E.        

Sapulpa Planning Commission
Meeting Date: August 27, 2019  
Submitted By: Nikki Howard, Urban Development Director
Department: Planning & Development
Presented By: Nikki Howard

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding an Ordinance amending the Zoning Ordinance of the
City of Sapulpa; Changing the Zone and District of property located at 102 South Poplar Street,
City of Sapulpa, State of Oklahoma, from OL (Office Low Intensity) to RS-3 (Residential Single
Family), per SAZ-959.

BACKGROUND:
The subject property is located at the southwest corner of of West Lee Avenue and South Poplar
Street. The property was rezoned to OL in December 2002 per SAZ-849. The proposed use was a
legal office, "Frazier Legal Center".
The new owner will be utilizing the structure as a residence and would like to be in compliance
with the zoning code and comprehensive plan.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff is recommending approval of the request to rezone the property from Office Low Intensity
to Single Family Residential, per SAZ-959.

Attachments
Case report
case maps
site photo



SAZ-959 | Bob Nale       August 27, 2019 Page 1 of 2 

    
    
 

 

SAPULPA PLANNING COMMISSION (SPC) 
August 27, 2019 

 

FILE: SAZ-959 | Rezoning 
 
OWNERS:   JAV, LLC 
 
ADDRESS: 102 South Poplar Street 
PARCEL:  1000-00-068-000-0-010-00 
    
STR:   Section 35, Township 18 North, Range 11 East 
 
LEGAL:  The North 64.9 feet of Lot 1, Block 68, Original Town now City of 

Sapulpa, Creek County, State of Oklahoma, according to the recorded plat 
thereof. 

 
LOT SIZE: 9750 square feet more or less  
  
ZONING:   OL 
 
EXISTING USE:  Law Office 
 
APPLICANT:   Bob Nale 
 
CC WARD:  Ward #2 Mr. John Anderson and Ms. Carla Gunn 
 
PREPARED BY:       Nikki Howard – Urban Development Director  
 
  
 
REQUEST: 
 
The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from OL (Office Low Intensity) to RS-3 
(Residential Single Family). 
 
 
APPLICABLE STATE AND MUNICIPLE CODE SECTIONS: 
 

 

  

 
  



SAZ-959 | Bob Nale       August 27, 2019 Page 2 of 2 

City of Sapulpa Zoning Code, Chapter 4, Residential  
 
 
BACKGROUND: The subject property is located at the southwest corner of West Lee Avenue 
and South Poplar Street. The property was rezoned to OL in December 2002 per SAZ-2394 for 
“Frazier Legal Center”.  The new owner will be utilizing the structure as a residence and 
would like to be in compliance with the zoning code and comprehensive plan.  
 
 
SURROUNDING LAND USE AND ZONING:  
 
 

North: CG Elk’s Lodge 
 
East: CS Dental Office  

  
South: RS-3 Residential Single Family 

 
West: RS-3 Residential Single Family 
 

 
Comprehensive Plan: The subject property is designated Residential on 

the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).  
 
Flood Zone:   The subject property is not located within a flood 

zone.  
   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Staff received a call from an adjoining property owner who had no issue with the Residential 
use. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:       Recommended motion for SPC: 
 

Staff is recommending APPROVAL of the application. 
 

  
 








	Agenda
	Consent Agenda_Minutes
	ATT_minutes
	Public Hearings_SUP-040
	ATT_Staff report
	ATT_Findings of Fact and Conclusion of Law
	ATT_Maps and submittals
	ATT_site photo
	Public Hearings_SUP-043
	ATT_Staff report
	ATT_Findings of Fact and Conclusion of Law
	ATT_maps and submittals
	ATT_site photo
	Public Hearings_SAZ-956
	ATT_staff report
	ATT_case maps
	ATT_site photo
	Public Hearings_SAZ-957
	ATT_case report
	ATT_Maps and survey
	ATT_site photo east lots
	ATT_site photo west lots
	Public Hearings_SAZ-959
	ATT_Case report
	ATT_case maps
	ATT_site photo

